United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR
Pacific Southwest Region
2800 Cottage Way
IN REPLY Room E-1712
REFER TO: Sacramento, California 95825-1890

August 9, 2007

MEMORANDUM

To: Robert McCarthy, Field Solicitor, Palm Springs Field Office
From: Daniel G. Shillito, Regional Solicitor, Pacific Southwest Region
Subject: Proposed Removal of Robert McCarthy

This is official notification that I propose to remove you from your position of Palm
Springs Field Solicitor, GS-0905-15, Pacific Southwest Region, Office of the Solicitor.
Department of the Interior and from Federal service. You are charged with violation of
the Trade Secrets Act and unauthorized use of non public information. This action is
proposed in accordance with Part 752 of Title S of the Code of Federal Regulations for
such cause as will promote the efficiency of the Service. Such action, if sustained, will be
effected no sooner than 30 days from your receipt of this notice.

Background

In April 2007, I was informed by the BIA Regional Director and his Associate of an
article in the Desert Sun newspaper, dated April 11, 2007. entitled, "Probe: Local Indian
Affairs office troubled."

The Desert Sun is the daily newspaper serving the Palm Springs community. The article
described that the Bureau of Indian Affairs (Bureau or BIA), continues to experience
problems with management of commercial leases for Indian trust lands identified in a
1992 audit report by the Department of the Interior., Office of the Inspector General
(OIG). The article quoted a letter from Earl Devaney, DOIInspector General, to a U.S.
Senator. stating that BIA's Palm Springs Office in particular had not yet implemented all
of the recommendations made in the 1992 audit report. Also, various quotes -
prominently displayed in the article -- were attributed to you directly as the “Attorney for
the Palm Springs office of the Bureau of Indian Affairs”.

After reviewing the newspaper article, the Deputy Regional Solicitor, Temi Berger,
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contacted you by telephone on April 16, 2007, and requested that you provide all
documents and verbatim accounts of communications that you provided to the Desert
Sun or other entities. Initially, you told Ms. Berger that you did not have to provide the
content of any discussion or disclose any documents that you had provided. Following
Ms. Berger's discussion with you, she sent you a written memorandum by facsimile dated
April 16, 2007. Ms. Berger also prepared a memorandum to file, dated April 17, 2007,
recalling her telephone conversation with you of the previous day. In her memorandum
to you, Ms. Berger noted her concern that information had been improperly disclosed in
violation of Cobell v. Kempthorne, and in violation of your professional responsibility as
an attorney for the Secretary and the BIA client within the Department.

On April 23, 2007, Ms. Berger received a memorandum from you dated April 20, 2007,
that served as your response to the April 16th verbal and written requests for a copy of all
documents and verbatim record of any conversations that you engaged in with the Desert
Sun or other entity. Among those documents provided by you were: (1) a memorandum
dated June 28, 2005, titled "Whistleblower Disclosures Regarding the Bureau of Indian
Affairs", which you had previously sent to the OIG requesting they investigate your
allegations against BIA; and (2) an internal e-mail message from a BIA employee to the
Palm Springs Superintendent, entitled "TAAMS Opportunity Area". In your written
response to Ms. Berger, you acknowledged that you had provided these memos (and
other items) to the Desert Sun reporter but asserted that, as to the OIG memo, you had
redacted the Palm Springs Office case number and file name from the document. The
document that you provided to Ms. Berger contained these redactions. At this time, Ms.
Berger and I commenced research into the content of the article, as well as the
information you admittedly provided to the Desert Sun reporter to ascertain whether your
conduct/disclosures amounted to a violation or violations of your professional
responsibilities.

The publication of the article, which appeared to concern the apparent unauthorized
disclosure of confidential information, strained the already difficult relationship that you
had with the PSA. As a result, the BIA Regional Director demanded through the
Regional Solicitor’s office that you cease all work on behalf of the BIA Palm Springs
Field Office. This request was later confirmed in writing by the Director, Bureau of
Indian Affairs. In his memorandum, the Director demanded that the long standing
arrangement by the BIA’s Palm Springs office allowing you to occupy an office and have
access to a law library and other office amenities cease immediately. The Director
demanded that you be removed from the office permanently because, based on your
contributions to the article and other inappropriate examples of conduct leading up to the
article’s release, the Bureau could no longer trust you as their attorney, especially when
confidential trust information was being made public by its legal counsel.

In sum both this office and the client agree that your decision to provide Indian Trust and
confidential commercial or financial information to a newspaper reporter, as detailed in
this proposal, was a deliberate and harmful act by an Interior attorney who knew or
should have known the consequences of such an act.
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